15. Dividend
(a) Dividend Attributable to the Year
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2023 2022
—®g-= —F-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.20 BEEAHRESK
(2022: HK$0.20) per share B0 (ZE
P& #0.207T) 56,662 56,662
Proposed special dividend of EREAREER
HK$0.80 (2022: Nil) per share 7B #£0.807T
(B % &\) 226,647 -
283,309 56,662

Final dividend of HK$0.20 (2022: HK$0.20) per share
and special dividend of HK$0.80 (2022: Nil) per share for
the year to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members on 30 May 2024 was proposed by
the Directors on 20 March 2024.

The final and special dividends proposed after the
reporting date have not been recognised as a liability at
the reporting date.

(b) Dividend Attributable to the Previous
Financial Year, Approved and Paid during the
Year

(b)

BEER_T_NF=ZA_t+HE=ZM
R-Z-mMERB=FTHLZIRKE
Hfl 2 B BRR A5 A S R HARR B AR
BHL0.207T (ZE = —4F : B¥0.207T)
KRR B8’ B K080 (ZF =
ZHE )

VRERHREZ 2 RARERIRE
TENBEAHERREE -

BEMBEEZRE  RENE
o R 2 At

Final dividend in respect of the
previous financial year of HK$0.20
per share (2022: final dividend of
HK$0.20 per share)

2023 2022
—EgC-= T

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BRI
BAEMBRFE 2 RHKES

B BE#0.207T

R FRERE

BB E0.207T) 56,662 56,662
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16. Loss per Share
The calculation of the loss per share of the Company is based
on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$646,511,000 (2022: HK$268,201,000) and the number
of ordinary shares of 283,308,635 (2022: 283,308,635) in issue

17.

during the year.

=F+-H=1—HIFE

16.

No diluted loss per share for years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 was presented as there were no potential ordinary
shares in issue during the years ended 31 December 2023 and

2022.

BikEiE
RRAREREBENFTEERETRGHEEA
FEAL S NS 18 75 646,511 OOOTE(fz::
F 1 B ¥268,201,000T) R F A B BT LR
A% # H283,308,635M% (= & — —
283,308,635/%) °

HREBE-_T_=FRF-_FT-_—F+-A=
T-HALFEAYEBBETEELRE A
I EZ2INHE_T_=ZFR_FT
TA=t+-HUEFEZEREEER -

Investment Properties 17. HEYE
2023 2022
—g-= —E-_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Fair Value AFEE
As at 1 January wn—A—H 19,374,605 19,808,515
Additions R
— Purchase of units i =Rk 135,024 397
— Sublease of leased properties —HHEMHEME 12,942 42,581
— Construction costs — EERA AR 35,113 42,513
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) i & BT A 7] (M #E37) (23,990) (48,300)
Disposal of investment properties HEREYE (149,821) (6,827)
Net fair value loss on investment properties R E ¥ N FEEIEFHE (1,212,858) (464,274)
As at 31 December nt+-—A=+—H 18,171,015 19,374,605
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Investment Properties (Continued)

The Group leases out commercial buildings, industrial
buildings and retail stores under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. The Group also subleases its leased
properties under operating leases with rentals payable
monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
six years, with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial
period held by lessees only. Majority of the lease contracts
contain market review clauses in the event the lessee exercises
the option to extend. The leases of retail stores contain
minimum annual lease payments that are fixed over the lease
term and lease payment of certain leases of retail stores are
determined by the higher of 10% to 25% of the sale and the
monthly lease payment.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of
the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the
respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or
lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease
term.

All of the Group’s investment properties are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31
December 2023 and 2022 by an independent qualified
professional valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Limited (“C&W”), on
market value basis which conforms with The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standard:

° The completed investment properties (whole block of
commercial building) are revalued by adopting income
capitalisation method, which involves certain estimates,
including capitalisation rates and reversionary rental
value;

17.
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Investment Properties (Continued)

° The completed investment properties (individual units
(including commercial, industrial and residential
properties) or ground floor retail properties) are revalued
based on direct comparison method, by reference to
market transactions of comparable properties;

° The leased properties under sublease arrangement by
the Group, are revalued based on income capitalisation
method which involves certain estimates, including
capitalisation rates and reversionary rental value; and

° Investment properties under re-development were
revalued on the re-development basis by adopting the
residual method. The value is based on the re-
development potential of the properties as if these
properties will be developed and completed in
accordance with the existing redevelopment proposal at
the date of valuation and is determined by deducting the
estimated total cost of the development, including costs
of construction, professional fee, finance costs,
associated costs and an allowance of profit that duly
reflected developer’s risk associated with the
development from the gross development value.

In determining the fair values of the investment properties, the
Group engages an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The management works with the
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for level 3 fair
value measurement. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the investment properties, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

In relying on these valuations, the management has exercised
judgement and is satisfied that the methods of valuation
adopted are appropriate and reflective of the current market
conditions.

17. ?xﬁ#ﬁ%(..ﬁ
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17. Investment Properties (Continued) 17.
The carrying amount of the Group’s investment properties is a
level 3 fair value measurement. There were no investment
property transfers into or out of level 3 fair value measurement
during both years.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used).

Investment properties

held by the Group in

the consolidated statement Fair value as at Valuation Significant

of financial position 31 December 2023 technique(s) unobservable input(s)

ARERGEMBRAR AZBCZ=E

FFAZRENE +-AZ+-BZA¥E EEREAF FEFTHEHR
HK$'000
BBTT

REYX(\)
AEERANE 2 REEAERATE
e NAEFEN  DERENEBA
SHEEIRATFEE -

TRBIEBNARERERENE 2 A
T (8 (35 B 2 B 52 R 0 £ 1L 5 1 2 B
B R o

Interrelationship between

significant unobservable
Range of significant input(s) and fair value
unobservable inputs measurement

TEFTHEYRA
TEFTREYB2EE AFEFEZIRBG

Completed investment
properties

EERRENE

Completed investment properties 12,897,500 Income capitalisation Reversionary rental value
(whole block of commercial (2022: 13,889,000 method
building)

BEKEENE 12,897,500 W NEAR (L& EHHE
(BEHEET) (20227 : 13,889,000)

Capitalisation rate

B ®

Completed investment properties 2,012,975 Direct comparison Price per square foot
(individual units (including (2022: 2,034,605) method
commercial, industrial and
residential properties) or ground
floor retail properties)

BEREENE 2,012,975 EENLEE FEHRER
(EREf (nEEE T¥R (20227 : 2,034,605)
FENME) KW TEENE)

HK$21 - HK$53 The higher the reversionary
(2022: HK$22 - HK$55) rental value, the higher the
per month per square foot for fair value
upper-level office/restaurants
premises;

HK$65 - HK$582
(2022: HK$65 - HK$639)
per month per square foot for
ground floor shops

BERAE RESH EHEEEMS  ATEMS
FHREA
BEATE BB
(2002% : Bls22 L E
BHEETL)

wRHEFHAREA
BBe5TTE B H5827L
(2022% : BHEG5TLE
B H6397)

2.38% - 3.5% The higher the capitalisation
(2022: 2.25% - 3.5%) rate, the lower the fair

value

2.38% £3.5% EXfbEME  ATE
(2022%F: 2.25% £3.5%) WIE

HK$7,900 - HK$103,000 The higher the price per
(2022: HK$8,300 - HK$112,000) square foot, the higher the
per square foot for commercial fair value
properties

HK$2,800 - HK$10,900
(2022: HK$2,800 - HK$11,300)
per square foot for industrial
properties

HK$5,300 - HK$24,000
(2022: HK$5,400 - HK$26,000)
per square foot for residential
properties

BENEETAR BYHRE/RBS -
BET7900T E AFEES
7 #108,0007C
(20224 : % 18,3000 &

7 #112,0007T)

TENEFTHREB2800TE
#10,9007T
(20225 : % 12,8007 2
7 ¥11,3007T)

EENEFTHREB5300TE
724,000
(20225 : 15,4002
7 #26,0007)
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17. Investment Properties (Continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group in

17. REMERE)

Interrelationship between
significant unobservable

the consolidated statement Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value
of financial position 31 December 2023 technique(s) unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs measurement
FEARGAMBRAR RZF=Z=& TERTHRHRE
FiaZRANE +§HE+—EIZ’A$E HER FETUHRRYR FETTHRRYRZER AFEFEZERMRE
HK$'000
BETT
Leased properties
HEWE
Leased properties under sublease 40,540 Income capitalisation Reversionary rental value  HK$8.5-HK$21 The higher the reversionary
arrangement by the Group (2022: 50,400) method (2022: HK$9-HK$21) per month rental value, the higher the
per square foot fair value
AREEDHLTHETZHENE 405640 WABRILE EREHE BYAREABHLSETE EHHELS ATEES
(20224 50,400) BT
(00225 : BM9TE
21T
Capitalisation rate 3.25% The higher the capitalisation

B

Investment properties under re-development

ERRENE

Investment properties under
re-development

3,220,000
(2022: 3,400,600)

Residual method

EREENE 3,220,000

(20227 : 3,400,600)

A 5¥HRER

Estimated construction and
other professional costs

Price per square foot

(2022: 3.25%)

3.25%
(20227 : 3.25%)

HK$21,000 per square foot
for office premises
(2022: HK$21,000 - HK$22,000
per square foot for office
premises);
HK$24,000 - HK$32,000
(2022: HK$25,000 - HK$32,000)
per square foot for retail
properties
HK$7,200 (2022: HK$7,200)
per square foot for industrial
properties
BRENEESTHREK,0007T
(022F  HRAENEFGFHR
7B 21,0007 2 8 #22,0007T) :
TENEFTHIR
75 #£24,0007T £ 7 #£32,0007T
(2020% : 7 #25,0007C =
7 #32,0007)
IEXMESFAR
B H7.2007T
(2022% : % #7,2007T)

HK$2,300 - HK$6,600
(2022: HK$2,300 - HK$5,700)

to completion per square foot
fETRATERER BT R R %2300
HthEERAE Z 6,600
(2022% : 8 #2,3007C
Z 75,7007

Estimated profit margin
required to hold and

10% - 15%
(2022: 10%-15%)

rate, the lower the fair
value

ERfit ks ATE
MR

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher the
fair value

STHRERES  ATE
B

The higher the estimated

construction and other
professional costs, the
lower the fair value
MARERABEERA
B ATELSE

The higher estimated profit

margin, the lower the fair

develop the investment

properties to completion
RERBRRENEER

PR (A AR

There were no changes to the valuation techniques for the
investment properties other than disclosed above during the
year.

value
10%Z15% EEAERES  ATE
(2022 10% £15%) W

MO\ E BN - FRIRE W E 2 (R
W EED -
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Investment Properties (Continued)

The fair value measurement is based on the above investment
properties’ highest and best use. The fair values of certain
investment properties have been adjusted to exclude prepaid
or accrued operating lease income to avoid double counting.

As at 31 December 2023, certain investment properties of the
Group with total carrying amount of approximately
HK$10,964,400,000 (2022: approximately HK$11,715,400,000)
were pledged to secure borrowings of approximately
HK$1,516,799,000 (2022: approximately HK$1,774,527,000)
(note 26).

As at 31 December 2022, certain investment properties of the
Group with total carrying amount of HK$2,200,600,000 are
related to a sale and purchase agreement entered by the
Group with an independent third party on 9 August 2022, to
sell the entire interests of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Linking
Smart Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”) at a
total consideration of HK$3,208.8 million. The Disposal Group
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
immediate sole shareholder of the owners of the investment
properties. As at 31 December 2022, total deposit of
HK$320,881,500 were received by the Group from the
purchaser and included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under “trade and other payables”. Details of
the above transaction are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 11 August 2022 and 19 January 2023
respectively and the circular of the Company dated 23
September 2022.

On 19 January 2023, the Group, the purchaser, the seller
guarantor and the purchaser guarantor entered into a
supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to extend the date of the
purchaser’s payment of the further deposit of HK$320,881,500
for six months from 9 February 2023 to 9 August 2023 with the
interest of HK$11,200,083 agreed to be paid and paid on
8 February 20283. Details of the Supplemental Agreement are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated
19 January 2023.

17.

B T 5 R B

=F+-H=1—HIFE

REVFE(E)
AFEEDHRE LRBENE L B
BiEMAR ETRAVEZAFHEELH
B o MR T SRR A ST R AT
e BHEEHH -

RZBEZ=F+=-A=+—H KAKEEH
BR T 48 {8 #9 /8 #10,964,400,0007T (Z & =
T 4F %) 78#11,715,400,0007T) 2 & TR E
Y1) 3£ 448 DA B A B4 75 #51,516,799,000
TT(= T = — 4 : 49785 ¥1,774,527,0007T) Z

—_

& & (Fft 5£26) -

RZB-Z—F+-A=+—08 A&£EEH
48 {H 78 2 200,600,0007T 2 = T B ¥ %
ﬁ&$%lﬁ_$::¢ﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁj
FEZ=FEMAEE 2 E N B AR A Linking
Smartumlted&ﬁﬁﬂg T(Tﬁme)%
HEZ 2 EEHE BREABK
3,208,800,0007T ° & %l%$ﬁﬁz£
B BRARRIEEMEREAZEEZRE—
R -RZF-_—_F+—_A=+—H &%
B 4t B 5 W B % & 4 58 75 320,881,500
JC WEt AR AR R Z[E SR EAM
FEH/TAIEJEP FRRSFBRA AR A
PRAE—ZE-_—FNAt+—BAR=-ZT-_=F
—A+hBZASURBHAZS==FA
AZ+=HZBRKPHE -

RZE_=F—A+NA *x&£E BF
EHERARB T ERAGLHE T B (1
xHElD) BUEAEEREKE 5 ZTi#
**ﬁ%%%%%ﬁ5%ﬁ25%k§ﬁ
f{A mRZE_=F_AhLBTERZE
=FNANAE Iﬁm@iﬁﬂ@%%
11,200,0837C ° ZAEER=ZZT=_=F_A1
NBXf - R EFBEH RN RHEH
BT =F—A+tNAZAEN-
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17. Investment Properties (Continued)

On 9 August 20283, further deposit in the sum of
HK$320,881,500 (the “Further Deposit”) was due and payable
to the Group. The Purchaser, nonetheless, failed to pay the
Further Deposit. In response, the Company has since sought
legal advice and reviewed the options and recourse available,
and made an announcement on 10 August 2023 to give
progress update.

On 13 September 2023, the Group further entered into a
settlement agreement with the Purchaser and the Purchaser
Guarantor. A HK$32,000,000 non-refundable settlement sum
was paid to and received by the Group and the Agreement
was terminated pursuant to the terms of the aforesaid
settlement agreement. Details of the above are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 September 2023.

18. Property, Plant and Equipment

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T e B

17.

BEMEE)

MN-Z-=FN\AhB KEERESINZ
#E— H iR & B 320,881,500 ([ # — # 1%
DR HEAVEINE—FHERSE -
EREIE  AARELZEEBREEE
B UTEGSUAZEERERIE BB
MR-ZE-_=FN\A+ABRQM EHE
E:

RZZEZ_=FNAT=0 FEEHEEFTR
BENERANE-DTLMNBEHE - AEH
B A WIS TR E 2 MR R BB
#32,000,0007T * % 1% % B R 4% L i A0 7
Whad 2R LE - ERFIBENARAR
HA-ZE_=FAAT=AZ2MA -

18. Y1¥ - BRERRE

Leasehold Leasehold  Fixture, fixtures Motor Leased
lands Buildings improvements and equipment vehicles properties
{8
HELH [k HENEEE RERRHE RE HEWE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEFT BETT BEFT BETT BEFT BETT
Opening net carrying amount FNEAFE 79,391 33,078 5,006 609 ™ 2,713 122,528
Disposal/write-off etV € - - (77) - - - (77)
Deficit on revaluation (note 10) EEER(E10) - (120) - - - - (120)
Depreciation & (535) (880) (2,818) (121) (138) (2,713) (7,205)
Exchange realignment ERAZR (432) - - 27 U] - (412)
Closing net carrying amount FREmFE 78,424 32,978 2,201 515 596 - 114,714
As at 31 December 2023 R-BZ=f§
+-A=+-8
Cost/Valuation BA/ (5 87,358 32,978 46,827 13,198 3,323 = 183,684
Accumulated depreciation Rt E (8,934) - (44,626) (12,683) (2,727) - (68,970)
Net carrying amount REFE 78,424 32,978 2,201 515 596 - 114,714
Analysis of cost/valuation BA/EEMT
At cost BRA 78,424 - 2,201 515 596 - 81,736
At professional valuation REERE - 32,978 - - - - 32,078
78,424 32,978 2,201 515 596 - 114,714




AN N

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4#kt

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SO A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ 2 = F = =+ =-HA=+—HiI F/Z

- - é —
18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. 1% + & &= R & (&)
Leasehold Leasehold Fixture, fixtures Motor Leased
lands Buildings improvements and equipment vehicles properties Total
&
HELH BT BENEKE RERRR RE HENE 2R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Opening net carrying amount FNEEFE 80,541 34,978 9,953 326 892 8,526 135,216
Additions #iR - - - 400 - 839 1,239
Disposalwrite-off e/ - - (158) - - - (158)
Deficit on revaluation (note 10) EfBR M0 - (120) - - - - (120)
Depreciation e (654) (880) (4,699) (124) (139) (6,652) (13,048)
Exchange realignment ERAE (596) - - 7 (12) - (601)
Closing net carrying amount FRERFE 79,391 33978 5,096 609 4 2713 122,528
As at 31 December 2022 RZB-ZF
+-A=t-8
Cost/Valuation KA/ e 88,032 33,978 47,601 13,219 3,341 11,447 197,618
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (8,641) - (42,505) (12,610) (2,600) (8,734 (75,090)
Net carrying amount BEFE 79,391 33,978 5,096 609 741 2713 122,528
Analysis of cost/valuation KA/ HET
At cost BRA 79,391 - 5,096 609 741 2,713 88,650
At professional valuation REEHE - 33,978 - - - - 33,978
79,391 33,978 5,096 609 741 2,113 122,528

The above items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using straight-
line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold lands/leased properties
Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Over the lease period
2%

10%-30%

10%-20%

6%-15%

L BEEKXEBEBEAGEAR
HARARESE R TEEFEFH®RE
& :

ME+H HEWE REHA
g5 2%
HEWREKE 10%-30%

K KEREE
TE

10%-20%
6%-15%
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

FroA=1—HIFE

18. W% » W E KRR (&)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s buildings in Hong Kong
are stated at valuation of HK$32,978,000 (2022:
HK$33,978,000). The Group’s buildings were revalued by C&W
based on net replacement cost method. For the year ended 31
December 2023, a revaluation loss of approximately
HK$120,000 (2022: Loss HK$120,000) had been recognised.

As at 31 December 2023, leasehold land and buildings of the
Group with carrying amount of HK$94,245,000 (2022:
HK$96,321,000) were pledged to secure borrowings of the
Group (note 26).

The fair value of the Group’s owner-occupied buildings is a
level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the

opening and closing fair value balance is provided below.

There was no transfers into or out of level 3 during the year.

R-ZE-_=F+=—A=1+—H8 A&£BRE
B Z 18 F AL E 78 32,978,000t (— T =
—4F : 5 ¥.33,978,00070) B BR - AEE 2
EFRBERTRIFEENNEEMRG - &
BT - =F+-A=t+—HILFEEHE
B 120,000 (ZE = —F : [FEBE
120,0007T) E R °

RZB_=F+—_A=+—H" $E@ﬁﬁ
BREE A8 #094,245000L (—F — —

75 196,321,0007T0) 2 H & T i RIEF LA
BAREE 2 EE (F5E26) °

AREFERBFZATFEAFIHEELEA
TEFE - FURFRATFEESHZH R
YR o

RAFE > WEEAREHEIL -

2023 2022
—®¥== —E-
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT
Opening balance (level 3 recurring FHEH(BIRET M
fair value) NTAE) 33,978 34,978
Depreciation e (880) (880)
Deficit on revaluation of properties held ~ EfhEF1EE R E 2 E#E
for own use (120) (120)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair FRER(FEIMEEM
value) NFE) 32,978 33,978
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

In determining the fair values of the buildings, the Group
engages an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The management works with the
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for level 3 fair
value measurement. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the owner-occupied buildings, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during
the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these buildings are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used).

Building
held by the Group measured Fair value as at
at revaluation model 31 December 2023

Valuation
technique(s)

Significant

R-BZ=%
FEEBARER +=A=+-H
BREGEZETF ZATHE 5 ERH

HK$'000

BETT

Owner-occupied buildings 32,978 (2022: 33,978)  Net replacement cost

BREF 32,078 (20224 FEERA

33978)

Note: Building replacement cost per square feet is determined with
reference to market comparables of constructing works, taking into
account of use, location and other individual factors such as total
floor level and type of structure.

unobservable input(s)

TEFARRHE

Building replacement cost
per square feet

SYHIRBTEEKA

18. W% « W E KRR #E (&)

EBEEBTAVER AEECZREBEY
BEBREXRMEMETHE - EEEES
VREMBEMLEMSEREIRDTER
EFEEE 2 HERMEEBE - HEBE
FRAVFELREAES  HERESTHRE
KERE -

RAFE  HEXNHEZE -

RNFEFEDEREAYEZ &S R RE
g BEERASTEER-

TRBF BB AT RSEFATES
B2 B8 B 1 (B B R BOB) 2 B K -

Interrelationship between
significant unobservable

Range of significant input(s) and fair value

unobservable inputs measurement
TEFTEREHRE

TETTHEHRZEE AFEABZEIERG

HK$4,200 per square foot The higher the building

(2022: HK$4,300) (note) replacement cost per feet
with reference to

comparables, the higher

the fair value
FEHREEAL,2007T 2RULBNEZERET
(2022 - & #4,3007T) BENAMS  ATEY
(H3E) =
Wak: BEAREFEERATISEMIH LA LR

ZEETEMERE  EHhsthkAE  LEN
REBERBEYBESHEMERNRZE -
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. ¥ % - G E R R # (&)

The Group as Lessee AREEBERBEAN
Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and FREEEGIADE  BENMEE)
equipment)

Leasehold Leased
land properties Total

HELH HEME k]

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EETR EETR EETR

As at 31 December 2022 RZEZ_F
+—A=+—H 79,391 2,713 82,104
As at 31 December 2023 MN-ZE-=F
+=-—A=+—8 78,424 - 78,424
For the year ended HE-_ZT—-—
31 December 2022 TZA=+—BLFE
Depreciation charge TEMXZ (554) (6,651) (7,205)
Exchange realignment ME o3& (596) - (596)
Total cash outflow for leases HMERS R AR (24,359)
For the year ended HE_ZT-_=F
31 December 2023 TZA=FT—RIEEE
Depreciation charge TEMXZ (535) (2,713) (3,248)
Exchange realignment PE H & (432) - (432)
Total cash outflow for leases HMERSRLER (26,562)
For both years, the Group leases various commercial and RAEFEE ASEBEHEHETRAMERIE
industrial premises for its operations. Lease contracts are VIEELE - HHON == WF 2 EEF
entered into for fixed term of three to four years, but may have HARTS. - MERJ I TP A RIE A -
extension options as described below. In determining the lease RETHBRTETAMEFENR K&
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, BEAGHNZEELE TSR NITZ
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines FHY o

the period for which the contract is enforceable.
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Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

The Group has extension options in a number of leases for
commercial and industrial premises. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the Group’s operations. The majority of extension
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessors. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options. The potential exposures to
these future lease payments for extension options in which the
Group is not reasonably certain to exercise:

Lease liabilities recognised
as at 31 December

18.

ME - HERRIEE)

AEBERETRERERIXDENEE
THRAEREEE RTEERSBYE
BRAAEEEEELLEMANEELY
RN - IRy EREZEER
AEBEITEM AR AL HAITE -
AEEREERKBERTERERERTE
STREEREEE AKBEYREAERE
ETEEREZENZSERRBEENRZ

8% AT S 48 -
BESTE:

Potential future lease payments
not included in lease liabilities
as at 31 December

2023 2022 2023 2022
R+-A=+—B®ZEH R+-ZBE+—HBXRFAABEERED
HEaRE BERKREERR
—B-=% —g-Z —EC-=H —E-CF
(undiscounted) (undiscounted)
(R#TIR) (RITIR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BB T ok e BETFT
Commercial and BERIEME
industrial premises
— Hong Kong — &5 37,924 50,615 101,401 134,873

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group did not exercise any extension options.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option upon the occurrence of
either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there is no
such triggering event.

REBEE_ZE_=Fr_ZT_—F+-_A=+
—BIEE  AREEY ETFETMAERE
R

AN REBEEBREMHHBEREHEERE
BHBRAB AT HEER  AEE
SELEERCTHEEREEZEE -REE
TR =FR T F+-A=+—HILt
FE - -WEB@EBEESEMT-
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. ¥1% - G E R # (&)
Restrictions or covenants on leases TH S PR &I 258
In addition, lease liabilities of HK$37,924,000 are recognised N RZE—=F+-_A=+—HB#RAMH
with related sublease of the leased properties of EET 737,924,000t - HEW 2 18
HK$40,540,000 included in investment properties as at 31 2 7 75 #40,540,000T st AR E W E - (=
December 2023 (2022: lease liabilities of HK$50,615,000 and T —F  HEA/EBKS50,6150007T K
related sublease of the leased properties of HK$50,400,000 & W) % 2 18 8 5 % #50,400,0007T 5T A
included in investment properties and right-of-use assets wEWE - DA RER#EEEB2,713,000
included in property, plant and equipment of HK$2,713,000). TLEFAME  BEKRERME) - BREHEARFAE
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than MREEE F R ERIN HEBZT
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the MEMERRE HEEETHREBRE
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for oo
borrowing purposes.
19. Properties for Sale 19.
2023 2022
—Eg=-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT T
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—HZE®E 1,063,112 888,704
Additions R 340,974 235,612
Disposals H & (13,374) (46,791)
Exchange realignment FE 5, 38 2 (8,809) (14,413)
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZEHEE 1,381,903 1,063,112
2023 2022
—E-=% — T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT T
Completed properties for sale EEKEEME 1,381,903 213,186
Properties under development FERRERYME
for sale - 849,926
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+t A=+—HZzEEE 1,381,903 1,063,112
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19. Properties for Sale (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, included in the completed properties
for sale was a joint operation project amounting to
approximately HK$3,360,000 (2022: HK$3,360,000) to jointly
develop a property site for residential purpose located at 1-11
Lai Yin Street and 2-12 Jones Street, Tai Hang, Hong Kong in
which the Group has a 20.24% equity interest. In 2014, the
Directors determined that the Group’s share of the completed
units would be put up for sale when completed and,
accordingly, reclassified its proportionate share of the interest
in this property development from investment properties under
construction to properties under development for sale. The
Group bears a proportionate share of the joint operation’s
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. The occupation
permit was released by the Buildings Department during the
year ended 31 December 2016. During the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, there is no revenue and cost of
properties for sale recognised.

19.

FEYEGE)
NR-B-=%F+—"FA=+—H BERFE
Y BIE—TB B E A 3,360,000 (=&
: 5 #£3,8360,00070) 2 & & THE A
HRAME —EMLRESAREBEHIEIHR
RELTEH2E1FIEEER G ZMEME
Heh REBPEF20.24% 2 Bk« R-F—
e EEREAEBD(HZEEKREN
BREKEBRE Bt NEBBERL
DI ZYEBEREE R  AERERE
MEETHOREFERETYE - ~5E
EERLOIEEEEEB2EE AF -
WHZEAY EFEREBEE-_ZT—X<F+
A=+ BHLEFERABEEAFFAE -
REBEE_ZT-_=Fr-_ZFT-_—"F+-_fF=+
—HIEFE  BMERIAFEDERE K
Z’Xo
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20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan 20. ES R HMEWRIE TEWK
Receivables X
2023 2022
—Eg-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEET T BT T
Current assets: HEEE -
Trade receivables g5 EW KB
— contract with customers —EFEE&4 8,472 9,753
— rental receivables —EWHEe 28,482 40,834
Total trade receivables B 5 3B 458 36,954 50,587
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (4,562) (4,022)
Total trade receivables, net B RN TBRE  F5E 32,392 46,565
Loan receivables (Note) FEU & s (B FE) 145,385 145,680
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (141,776) (141,776)
Total loan receivables, net el E R ERE - F A 3,609 3,904

Other receivables, utility deposits and Hoth JiE U R IE ’R H IR

prepayment & &E ﬁ KIE 110,939 123,601
Total trade and other receivables DEARBEEZES R
categorised as current assets E {th fE U R 1B 4A KA 146,940 174,070
Non-current assets: FETEEE -
Loan receivables (Note) FE U & s (B FE) 4,349 5,906
151,289 179,976
As at 1 January 2022, the gross carrying amount of trade RZZE-—F—A—H REEEFAEHN
receivables from contracts with customers amounted to B 5 W GRIE 2 BR T 42 1E & 7% 7,255,000

HK$7,255,000. 7 ©
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20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan

Receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, based on invoice dates,
the aging analysis of the trade receivables, net of allowance for
credit losses, was the following:

20. ESRHEMEKRIE FEWK

B (E)

RCB-=F{R _E-_—F+_A=+—
B REXZAH BHEKZIEMNGRE
BEERERZERESTERIIMOT

2023 2022
—g=-= —F-—

HK$’000 HK$’000

R T IT ST T

0-30 days 0FE 30K 12,040 16,854
31-90 days 31E90K 9,114 13,669
91-180 days 912180k 4,338 8,075
Over 180 days B iB180K 6,900 7,967
Total trade receivables, net B RBFIBRTE 5 32,392 46,565

Normally, other than those property leasing rental receivables
which are secured by rental deposits, the Group does not
obtain collateral from other customers.

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$32,392,000 (2022: HK$46,565,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$11,238,000 (2022: HK$16,042,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
as these debtors have a good business relationship with the
Group and recurring overdue records of these debtors with
satisfactory settlement history.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly.

—RnE BUESRSBEWRZZEVE
HERKESIN AEETEREMES
Y BR 4K 4 g

R-ZT-_=%F+—-"A=+—H KEHEzZ
SFERFBELERBENHEAPE AR
T 42 {8 75 #632,392,0007c (ZF = —F : /&
#46,565,0007T) 2 & 7 A ° 1F 8 B 45 &4
o B 11,288,000 (ZE = —F B
16,042,0007T) B #1 Hi90 K sk A |+ M IE R~
REBEYN FRARZEEKABRLAERS
ROFEBBRE MzEEBAHESAR
ERSELETHEOBRTIE 2R -

BRAE S EUGR IR 2R E B R IA B F AR AD
8% BRIEASEEAWREZERIR A8
HBE EZERT  HEBRSEERN
B 5 & WK T M o
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20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan 20. ES REMEBEWKWRIE FEK

Receivables (Continued)

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 are set out in note 38.2.

Note:

As at 1 January 2021, included in loan receivables is an aggregate amount
of HK$4,000,000 which were secured, interest-bearing at Hong Kong
Prime Interest Rate minus 2.5% per annum and repayable within 1 year
from reporting date. The repayment date of these loan receivables was
extended by one year during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
further nine months during the year ended 31 December 2022 with a
principal repayment of HK$400,000 and a further HK$200,000 principal
repayment in the year 2023.

For the remaining loan receivables amounting to HK$4,558,000 (2022:
HK$6,210,000) which are secured, interest-bearing at Hong Kong Prime
Interest Rate minus 2% to 2.5% per annum (2022: 2% to 2.5% per annum)
for the first 36 months from the date of loan drawdown and thereafter at
the Hong Kong Prime Interest Rate. The loan receivables were repayable in
216 to 360 monthly instalments (2022: 216 to 360 monthly instalments)
with the final instalment payable in year 2035 to 2047 (2022: year 2035 to
2047). As at 31 December 2023, loan receivables of HK$1,092,000 (2022:
HK$1,137,000) could be early terminated by the borrowers at the principal
and accrued interest after 60 months after drawdown date.

The current portion of HK$3,609,000 (2022: HK$3,904,000) which is
expected to be recovered within one year is classified as current assets
while the balance of HK$4,349,000 (2022: HK$5,906,000) is classified as
non-current assets which is expected to be recovered over one year.

No loan receivables are past due as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The
loan receivables are secured by second mortgage on the properties
located in Hong Kong. The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the
properties in the absence of default by the borrower. There has not been
any significant changes in the quality of the collateral held for the loans
receivables. Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 are set out in note 38.2.

gi*(nﬁ)

(E T =R CF T A=t —
HIEFEE S EWGRIE - Hith & W RIE &
Rl & 2 M E T (A S IEE N FE38.2 -

i}

RZTE-_—F—F—H JIABKERELEE
MmmWEZAEEﬁﬁﬁ'&E%rﬁﬁﬂw
W2BEZFEREE - WA ﬁiaﬁt# E
NEE 2SRV ERNEEEEREE=
E+:ﬂ:+—5¢¢&kﬁ-¢-ﬁ%§7§:
—F+ZA=+—HIEFEEEARS B 400,000
TRBLERNER THR-Z-_=FHE—FEEX
4% 75 #200,0007T °

HerERE R BB 4,558,000 (ZF = —F:
75 #6,210,0007T) 2 R A B ER - RIEAENE
BT E36E AR BB HERFERR2EE2.5E (=
T _F 2B R25E)2FMEKHE  EBRRES
BREBMEFE - BRERH216E360H (=T =
—F2162360H) BARE  RE—HERER
:%zﬁ%%*%mti(*%**i:gzﬁﬁ

?mti&ﬁ'ﬁf7f7¢+ A= +—
EI JE U & FH 51,002,0007T (2 — —4F «
113700075)7931*‘*”/\%kﬁﬁEl%ﬁt.#tsoflﬂ«é:
BAG REFBERERL -

TEHA R — S R U Bl 2 BN EA #5745 #53,609,0007T (=
T =4 : A#3,904,000) DA RBEE © #
75 154,349,0007T (ZF = =4 : #¥5,006,0007T)
DEAERBDEE  BHENBHB—FRIKME -

R =FR-_F__F+A=+—HHER
HEWE R - ERERIUCL AT B 2 W —1RE
B - ERALEEL  NEETAHEKEIR
ME - -BRRERBMERBEZERARZES L ELM
EARE HE_E-_=FR_FT-_—_F+-H=
+—BIEFEZRETEFEH N E38.2 o
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Financial Assets at FVTPL/FVTOCI

As at 31 December 2022, included in financial assets at FVTPL
were structured bank deposits of HK$38,884,000 (2023: Nil)
placed with a bank in the Mainland China and contained
embedded derivatives which returns were determined by
reference to the return of the underlying portfolio of listed
shares invested by the bank and the duration of deposits
placed. The deposits could be withdrawn at the Group’s
discretion and were subject to early termination option of the
issuing bank at the price of the principal outstanding plus the
return of underlying portfolio of listing shares up to the date of
withdrawal/early termination. Annual return rate as at 31
December 2023 is 2.62% (2022: 2.08%).

The structured bank deposits were reclassified as financial
assets at FVTPL because their contractual cash flows did not
represent solely the payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December 2022 were
stated at fair values based on valuation provided by the issuing
bank. The fair value measurements were categorised to
Level 2.

As at 31 December 2023, financial assets at FVTOCI which
were investment in unlisted funds of HK$43,006,000 (2022:
HK$39,656,000) are stated at fair values.

Directors have elected to designate the investments as at
FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term
fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit or loss
would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding
these investments for long-term purposes and realising their
performance potential in the long run.

Financial assets at FVTOCI as at 31 December 2023 are stated
at fair value based on the net asset value of fund (i.e. fair value
of the portfolio included in the fund). The fair value
measurements are categorised to Level 3 (2022: Level 2).

21.

BATEIANELS BRATE
SFARMEEWMAZHMBEE

R-B-—#F#+—-A=+—08  RAFE:
ANBR 2 W BEEREEBERITERS
#£38,884,0007T (Z B = =4 : ) - FH R
FREAM—EERT TESHARISTET
B HEEPRDHZERTREZ2HAB LT
HDHEERBRTFTRFHRMETE - AEETA
BIBIREF R M RAIHETIRITIRE
REZRD RAKIEBHZAEELSS
BINAERE EH D AEAS B H 2 EBIRIEATR
k- RZE-_=%F+-_A=+—H 844
MAEE2.62% (ZT = — 4 :2.08%) °

HREBERITERZANEEREL I
TEREIXNETERAREERSHNE
HERBERTERERDBRRAFE
ABRZHMBEEE -

R-BE-—F+-_A=+—H RKAFE
AIABREZBEEREBEETRITIREZ
HERAFEYER - ATFEFESEAL
FoM o

RZZEZ_=F+"A=+—H RAFME:
AEM 2R A 2 875 & ZE %% 43,006,000
TT(ZZT = — 4 : B %39,656,0007T) & IE L
MESEE  DERAFEYE -

EEEERAVFEFAREMEZEBEARE
ERE RARKERASNERTHERZ
ERENFENEREITTEARER
RERNMBAZEFREMNRYERA
RBEENEOREE -

RZFZ=F+-A=1t—H BAVEF
AHMEEARAZHMBEELNREESE
EFEEIE2EEZ2REEAZATE)
BAFEINEE - 2 FEFAEDEREMR
(ZZZZFF28/) -
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22. Short-Term Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash

Equivalents
The cash and bank balances of the Group was summarised as
follows:

22 BEHRTER HE2RBELE

£
AREZRERBOATBBZEEMT

2023 2022
—®¥== — T

HK$’000 HK$’000
BT IT BT T

Short-term bank deposits with original REBABE=@AZ
maturity over three months RERITER 635,200 272,400
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBREEEY 503,106 1,122,544
Total cash and bank balances Be RIRITHEGETE 1,138,306 1,394,944

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, short-term bank deposits
with original maturity over three months were placed up till 1
year depending on the immediate cash requirement of the
Group, and earned fixed-rate interest at respective time
deposits rates of range from 4.55% to 5.63% (2022 : 4.05% to
6.10%) per annum.

Included in total cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$168,708,000 (2022: HK$138,578,000) of bank balances
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) placed with banks in the
Mainland China. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

The Directors considered that the fair value of the cash and
cash equivalents is not materially different from their carrying
amount.

R =FF T —F+—HA=+—H "
REHBRBE=MAZEHRETHE
REREHRRE—F QT AEE A
BeFEXkMmE TEHBEAZEHERE
A & A F4.55% £563% (ZF = =
4.05% 2=6.10%) it B [& & F & 2 ) B ©

AARNEERS RIRITERBBRETN
AR B A Hb % 8 3R 17 & B0% #5168,708,000
JL(ZZ = — 4 : ##138,578,0007T) Z AR
BIAREDHERITES - ARBEIIET]
BREBZER - REPBE A 2 INEE
BIEGI R GEE  SERMNESERE &
SRR ESCHBERETINEEBR ZRITU
AR H I HNEE o

EERA BRelReFENCATESR
FREELEEANESR -
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22. Short-Term Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash 22. S8R 1ITH SR HRE kAL E

Equivalents (Continued) B (E)
In the course of business, certain bank accounts were opened REFBREF  ETHBRARINUNERER
and held in the name of certain subsidiaries in form of trust on F=H(MBRARREREEFERRE 2
behalf of third parties to whom these subsidiaries provided ADUEREXARZRFEESE TRITE
building management services. As at the reporting date, those F o REBE - 25 AE0E89,278,000
bank balances held in form of trust on behalf of third parties TC(ZF = —4F : ##89,899,0007T) Z #R 1T
and were not recognised in the consolidated financial ERTDUEARARE=ZAFE  LER
statements of the Group amounted to HK$89,278,000 (2022: REBZERENBEHREANTER o
HK$89,899,000).
23. Trade and Other Payables 23. B RHMEMRIE
2023 2022
—Eg=-= —F-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR AT
Trade payables E S RIE 24,757 18,466
Receipt in advance & W R IE 35,576 26,013
Deposits received on disposal of HEWBAR ZEWIZS
subsidiaries (note 17) (FF 5E17) - 320,882
Deposit received on disposal of an HEREME 2 ERIZS
investment property 305 —
Rental deposits received BElWHEE® 123,639 136,989
Accruals on construction works AT IEETIE 188,996 192,573
Other accrued expenses and other Hib 2R &
payables H i JE S 5B 171,710 160,403
544,983 855,326
Trade payables had credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 days. B ZEMNRIE2EEBHN FI0EWXK - 1B
Based on invoice dates, the ageing analysis of trade payables BERELH  BZREMNFBEZERERSITEH
was the following: B
2023 2022
—E=-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR ok
0-30 days 0E30K 10,801 4,787
31-90 days 31E90K 1,188 963
Over 90 days B B0k 12,768 12,716

Total trade payables BRI REE 24,757 18,466
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24. Contract Liabilities

EEFSAS—HILFE

24. EWERE

2023 2022
—®g=-= -
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Deposits received in advance EBEEMNR TR 2
associated with pre-sale of HEMEZERTS
properties for sale situated in:
— Hong Kong — BB 185,016 113,496
— the Mainland China — RE R 4,366 7,072
189,382 120,568
As at 1 January 2022, the carrying amount of contract liabilities RZZZ—F—H—H ' GHEEZERKEE
is HK$47,186,000. 75 #47186,0007T °
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, deposits received in REFR-_E-=FF-_FE-__F+-A=

advance received by Group for the disposal of properties for
sale are expected to be completed and sold within one year

from the end of the reporting period.

T HARHERARNBERRETF —FR
RIRMEZHFENERARITS -
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24. Contract Liabilities (Continued)
The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities and how much relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

24. SHREE(E)
THIFAEEREBSNBERR YK
HEWURERBEBHET BOEE
Ry & o

Sales of Sales of
completed completed
properties for properties for
sale sale
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
SHEEER HEBDEMX
HEYE HTEME
BE-S-= HEr—_T_—_—
+ZHA=+—H aeiEaal=
i o ;- IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT
Revenue recognised that was included in st AF VI A B EE 2
the contract liabilities balance at the 2R =
beginning of the year 2,040 31,431
Revenue to be recognised from AARBITRABESTER
unsatisfied performance obligations ZW = 1,013,059 593,622

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

The Group receives 10% to 30% of the contract amount as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and
purchase agreement. However, depending on market
conditions, the Group may offer customers a discount
compared to the listed sales price, provided that the
customers agree to pay the balance of the consideration early
while construction is still ongoing. The deposits result in
contract liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until the customer obtains control of the
completed properties for sale.

FECHERAGNABRSE 2 RENFERX
LI

AEEEEFZEEEH 2B WREOE
BZ10%EI0NIERFFRIE » A @ A&
Bl BT A EBREFREH
il AIRRERFREEZETRNAEL
THRRFXNREHRE - ZFTER
EEBRDEZENRARRENEAE &
EEFPRBLERGENEZITHRAL -
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25. Lease Liabilities

25 HEAE

2023 2022
—®¥== — T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Lease liabilities payables ENEEEE
Within one year —F R 16,921 20,912
With a period of more than one year — & IA 21,003 29,703
37,924 50,615
Less: amount due for settlement B M@ B ARIEEES A
within 12 months shown mEBBAEZ
under current liabilities (16,921) (20,912
Amount due for settlement after 12 FA121E B 1% B E3/B B 7 A IE R 8
months shown under non-current BEZSH
liabilities 21,003 29,703

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to

lease liabilities is 3.93% (2022: 3.93%).

All lease liabilities were denominated in the functional

currencies of the relevant group entities.

ERREEREZ NEFHEEEEN X

53.93% (—F = =4 : 3.93%) °

WA -

FBEHEREDUEBEEER 2R
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26. Borrowings 26. &
2023 2022
—Eg=-= —T-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Current liabilities mEBE
Bank loans — secured RITER—HIEM 585,072 87,728
Non-current liabilities EmEAaE
Bank loans — secured RITER—BEM 931,727 1,686,799
1,516,799 1,774,527
Carrying amount of bank loans BIEEFRIBZMHTETENK
repayable based on the scheduled HERE(EE 2 RITEHNER
repayment dates set out in the loan HiE:
agreements:
Within one year —F A 585,072 87,728
More than one year, but not —FUAEBETBBMRE
exceeding two years 931,727 595,072
More than two years, but not MEN FETBRRAF
exceeding five years - 1,091,727
Total bank loans RITE KB 1,516,799 1,774,527
Carrying amount of bank loans matured R —F R P ZRITER Z
within one year (shown under current FEEGIRABER)
liabilities) (585,072) (87,728)

Amount shown under non-current ERBEEMY S
liabilities 931,727 1,686,799
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26. Borrowings (Continued) 26. IBE&(4)

As at 31 December 2023, bank loans are secured by certain
investment properties and property, plant and equipment of
the Group with a total carrying value of approximately
HK$11,058,645,000 (2022: certain investment properties, certain
properties for sale and property, plant and equipment of the
Group with a total carrying value of approximately
HK$12,661,647,000) as set out in notes 17 and 18 respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis that shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group’s borrowings is set out in note 38.2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings at the
reporting date were as follows:

RZB-=F+=-A=+—8 " B1ITE%
VA7 £5 3] AR T 48 (B 49 75 #511,058,645,000 7T
(CE - —F : ASELEEREHNAEBE
12,661,647,0007C & TR EME - & T4
EMERME  BERZRB) 2ATREY
EURYE BERKEBERER 57
B A BTSRRI sE17%18 ©

BRAKEEEZHRTANIMBZOMN
HRERA M B RKRMES8.2

RBEEAPAEEBE 2ERMEMNT

2023 2022

—¥=-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETR BT T

Bank loans RITER

— HK$-denominated loans ~ — B E K Hong Kong Hong Kong
Inter-bank Inter-bank
Offered Rate Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) (HIBOR?)
+1.12% to +1.12% p.a. to
HIBOR+1.15% p.a. HIBOR+1.30% p.a.
EERITEZE BBBRITRZE
HRE(TEEBRE wETEBRZE
HED +EF=E WE D +FFI X

112% ZEEF#H

+ 5 F F1.15%

112%EFBH
EEXi¥=}
+F F E1.30%

F%xFE
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27. Deferred Taxation 27. EEHBIAE
The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: EERIRRE 280 :
2023 2022
—g=-= — T
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT
As at 1 January n—H—H 124,655 115,306
Deferred taxation charged to profit or RIATHEENR B
loss (note 13) (M 3E13) 5,505 9,349
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 130,160 124,655
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets NTARREEMBERARERZ FERIE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position MBABEREENRRAEFERBTEE
and the movements during the current and prior years: &
Surplus on
revaluation
Accelerated of owner-
tax occupied
depreciation properties Tax losses Total
niE EffEH
HIERE MERR BEER Fok ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT

As at 1 January 2022 RZZ-—F— ﬂ 116,176 6,468 (7,338) 115,306
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REZEMB/GIA ?13)

(note 13) 9,904 20) (535) 9,349
As at 31 December 2022 RZZEZZF+=A=1+—H 126,080 6,448 (7,873) 124,655
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REBEMB/GIA)(FF13)

(note 13) 4372 ©0) 1153 5,505

As at 31 December 2023 RZZZ=F+-A=+—H 130,452 6,428 (6,720) 130,160
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27. Deferred Taxation (Continued) 27. BEBIE(E)
As at 31 December 2023, the Group has aggregate amount of R-ZE—_=F+—= ﬂ +—H A&EEEH
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings B A BB R R R 0 R B R 2 AR B

of the Mainland China subsidiaries of approximately M 2= KA 48 K 4) 75 508,304,000t (ZE = —
HK$28,394,000 (2022: HK$26,825,000) of which no deferred F @ 5 #06,825,0007T) I £& R R IE 7 I8
tax liabilities has been recognised. No deferred tax liabilities B  ARAEEHEMZEFEAMBRT 2

have been recognised in respect of these differences because BREBREAREERRBAZEMBERTRA
the Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of its BRI eETRKRE MU BERZEER
subsidiaries and the Directors considered that no dividend will BRELCHBAEE Bt EEEZEEHT

be declared by these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. ERAI R AR o
Thus, such difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future.

RBEHUR AEEAERPABABED

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax

losses of approximately HK$73,694,000 (2022: 7 #73,694000m (= T = = F: B K
HK$64,006,000) available for offset against future profits. A 64,006,00077:)7% RIEH R EF - E5E
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of ZEFEEBRRECERBBEENBK
approximately HK$40,727,000 (2022: HK$47,715,000) of such 40,727,0007C (=& = — F : & #47,715,000
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect J0) ° FAFRA AR 2R i AN AT FEURD - d kI £
of the remaining approximately HK$32,967,000 (2022: AR T 4778 132,967,0007C (T = —4F : 8
HK$16,291,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams. #£16,291,0007T) FE AR LT BB EE ©

Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of RERMIBEER H%FE“L%EF?&

approximately HK$8,255,000 (2022: HK$4,440,000) which will
expiry by five consecutive year. Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

B8~ B5 18 4 7 18,255,000 (Z T = —
F 1 7B #4,440,0007T)  H 5 18 A £ R 2B
e o

28. Share Capital 28. k&K
2023 2022
—8C-= —ECCF
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
% 3 80 B BETR PEraE 42 BB
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 B EEE¥010T 2
each TER 5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BERIRER:
As at 1 January and R—A—BE
31 December +=-—A=+—H 283,308,635 28,331 283,308,635 28,331
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20. 1B

The Group x&
2023 2022
—E|-= T
HK$°000 HK$'000
EBETR BT
Share premium (note (a)) P& 17 7% B (Bt 5E(a)) 690,811 690,811
Capital redemption reserve (note (b)) & 7K FE 0] R 1 (BT 5 (o)) 295 295
Investment revaluation reserve EEHHEE 3,424 388
Retained profits 1R 7 17,490,794 18,420,614
Exchange reserve M (40,573) (24,740)
Special reserve (note (c)) 5 B & 4 (B 3 (0)) 1,848 1,848
Proposed final and special dividends BEARBRER RS
(note 15(a)) (P 5E15(a)) 283,309 56,662
18,429,908 19,145,878
Notes: P 7 -
@) Share premium represents the excess of consideration received @) B EEEMRBRESRERTRMAEAERE
over the par value of share issued. AR o
(o) Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par (o) EARAEOFBEREBEERLBERMEEZ K
value of the bought-back shares, and such funds transferred from B ZEEeHhEBEREBRA -
retained profits.
(©  The special reserve of the Group represented the difference © AEE 2 FRFBRBBEAEE - NNEF
between the nominal value of the share capital issued by the SHBARFERITRAEBEREWE QA
Company in exchange for the nominal value of the share capital of RATEE 2 Z5 -

the subsidiaries pursuant to the Group’s re-organisation in 1997.

Details of the movements in the above reserves are set out in P FE S A4
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 204 D04F207TE 2R A HEZE

N A B ST
BB% -

to 207 to the consolidated financial statements.
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29. Reserves (Continued)

FroA=1—HIFE

29. ﬁ%ﬁ(n‘ﬁ

Proposed
Capital final and
Share  redemption  Contributed Retained special
premium reserve surplus profits dividends Total
&% BRARHR
RiiEE RERE A9ES  REEN  BIRE E L
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
RETT BB RETT BB RETT BB
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)
(fit 3£ (2)) (P 3 (o)) (P ()
Asat 1 January 2022 W-B-—F-f-H 690,811 295 1,206,626 581,775 56,662 2,536,169
Profit and other comprehensive ~ FREFI R EERA
income for the year - - - 407 - 407
Final dividends paid BRZZ2_-£X5
for 2021 (note 15(o)) e (MTE 15(0)) - - - - (56,662) (56,662)
Proposed final dividends BE-E-ERHE
for 2022 (note 15(a) 8 (i i 15(a) - - (56,662) - 56,662 -
As at 31 December 2022 -
+-A=1-AR 690,811 29 149,964 582,182 56,662 2479914
Profit and other comprehensive ~ EREFIR E2ERA
income for the year - - - 400 - 400
Final dividends paid ERZE-—5XH
for 2022 (note 15(0)) T 5 (P 315(0)) - - - - (56,662) (56,662)
Proposed final and special BE T CERBRES
dividends for 2023 note 15(a) & (K i 15(a) - - (283,309) - 283,309 -
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=%
+-A=1-H
Notes: B

(a) Share premium represents the excess of consideration received
over the par value of shares issued.

(b) Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par

value of the bought-back shares transferred.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for all
the issued ordinary shares of Lucky Spark Limited (a subsidiary)
and the value of the net underlying assets of the subsidiaries
acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution to the shareholders under certain circumstances.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a
distribution out of contribution surplus if:

(1) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

s BRI ERRERTRMHEE
ZE®
EABEOFEBREESENEEERBERNE
BEZ A

BN R R THE B 1T AR EX Lucky Spark Limited
(—EKHERE) EHERTLEBRZAAR
frrmEEmMKERNEARIEEFEEE
ZEFE - BEBEBEBRE-NN\—FREEKE
ﬂ%%ﬂ CEETERATARE 2 BMABR R

DIETARE o A - MEBEEUTER A2
AN AR B MR BT RS 2T B s fEH o
i

(1) TREHNIMNERTEINERAN 2
BT X

@ ﬁééz—l“iﬂfﬁlﬁt DPREBTE -
ERTRAREMGER 2@ -
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30. Commitments 30. iz
Capital Commitments EAXxiE
2023 2022
—E|-= —E- -
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR R T
Contracted but not provided for: EETHIME R B4
— Acquisition of investment properties — WEEIREME - 17,641
. 17,641
All capital commitments are due in the coming twelve months. FIEEARREHR AR+ _EARNEH -
31. Operating Leasing Arrangements 3. FEHERH
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as MEZATHRERBEERMKEOT:
follows:
2023 2022
—E=-= -
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR ok
Within one year —F R 252,835 291,428
In the second year F-F 113,756 164,366
In the third year F=F 40,524 44,313
In the fourth year FPF 10,517 15,189
In the fifth year BERF 3,263 5,699
Over five years AFU F 1,903 —

422,798 520,995
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31.

32.

Operating Leasing Arrangements
(Continued)

The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) under
operating lease arrangements which run for an initial period of
one to six years (2022: one to six years), with an option to
renew the lease terms at the expiry date or at dates as
mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
tenants. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to pay
rental deposits. The turnover-related rental income received
during the year amounted to HK$2,339,000 (2022:
HK$1,348,000).

Financial Guarantee Contracts

As at 31 December 2023, the Group provided guarantees
amounted to approximately HK$40,220,000 (2022:
HK$51,166,000) to banks with respect to mortgage loans
procured by the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such
guarantees will be released by banks upon delivery of the
properties to the purchasers and completion of the registration
of the mortgage with the relevant mortgage registration
authorities or settlement of the outstanding mortgage loan. In
the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the financial
guarantee is not significant.

31.

32.

SERERHER

AEBREBELLHELHEAERENE
(MEE17) » VATHE—E NF(ZT - —4F:
—ERF) ARERISESAEEES
BEAAAEATREZHPER - AOIKEXK
MEEABABZEMEASES - FREWK
LEEIER 22 W A A& 2,339,0007T
(ZZ = —4 : #%1,348,0007T) °

= —

MBEREL

R-TE-=F+—_FA=+—H "EEHK
SEMEERNE 2 EBERMIRITRHE
& (R 49 7 40,220,000t (ZFE = —F : /&
#£51,166,0007T) ° 7% 5 & Or 15 I 90 % XA
FERILAABIZRBECHEBERZLIRBE
SR B E M R IRIEE R R RIRTTRRR -
EEZRR UBERZAFELTERX -
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33. Statement of Financial Position of the

A SO A B

S AS AR

33. KAFZHB KRR

Company
2023 2022
—E=-= —E2-=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s BRI BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets EREEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG 5 34 545,000 545,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A B 2 kI8 1,906,498 1,962,685
2,451,498 2,507,685
Current assets RHEE
Other receivables H b & U 5108 433 399
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBFeEED 482 491
915 890
Current liabilities REBE&RE
Amount due to a subsidiary FERT I B A R) 2 FE - —
Accrued expenses and other payables &=+ 2 B K H fth fE (+ 5018 428 292
Provision for income taxation Frig i E 2 38
430 330
Net current assets BREEE 485 560
Net assets FEE 2,451,983 2.508,245
EQUITY i
Share capital & s 28 28,331 28,331
Reserves s 29 2,423,652 2.479,914
Total equity HELSE 2,451,983 2,508,245
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34. PHBASIZHER
KRB =FR=-_ZT-_—_F+=-A=+—H
ZEBHBARFIBHOT

34. Interests in Subsidiaries
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation ERTRAEE/ held by the Company Principal activities
AF&H EMRL/EERE HMEXHE FATFMBEEER TEEH
Directly Indirectly
2022
—E-CF
Billion Glory Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital HK$1 - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited
EHEEERAF BiE BRARAEEIT NERE
Bond Rising Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of — 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RBARREE REREEXSITLZ RERR
Castle Peak Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - 100% 100%  Property
Properties Limited development
BIEREWERRAR  BE BERRAEEIT NEER
Eternal Bonus Group British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of — 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited US$1 each
RBRERRES HERAEXEITLZ REAR
3L
Fortune Together Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RBERRR ABEBRES REBRAEEITL REER
LmR
Golden Relay Company Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited HK$100,000
SBERAT BiE B AR EH100,0007T NERE
Goldwell Property Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - 100% 100%  Provision of building
Management Limited HK$100,000 management
service
CEMEEEERARA 0 B &R % %100,0007C REBFERRYE
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Particulars of nominal

34. RMIBATIZHER(E)

Principal activities

TEEY

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation BRTRAEE held by the Company
AFER HMmL BERE FRERHE FATMBERE AL
Directly Indirectly
H#& &
2022
—T-—F&
Grape Trade Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%
US$1 each
EBERRES RERAEE 1T
LRK
Harvest Fortune Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%
ikt YN BiE BRBRTERIT
Keep New Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%
Limited HK$1,000
REBREBERAA EE B&RAE 1,000
Lead Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%
BEEXERAA EE BRERAEEIT
One Storage Management Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%
Company Limited
EERMRRERARAR  FE BERRAEEIT
Onwell Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - — 100% 100%
ZEERARAHA Bk BERRAEEIT
Power Huge Development Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%
Limited
RERERBBRRA BiE BRBRTERIT
Sky Luck (China) Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%
HK$10,000
REHE) ERAR EE B&RAE%100007T

Investment holding
REER
Property investment
NERE
Property
development

LS

Property investment
NERE

Mini-storage
a3y

Property investment

NERE
Property investment
NERE
Property investment

NERE
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34. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued) 34. RMBAT ZH#E (&)
Particulars of nominal
Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation ERTREAEE/ held by the Company Principal activities
AT &HE EREL/ EERE HMEFHE FATFMBESERI TEER
Directly Indirectly
EE &
2022
“E-—F
Soundwill (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands 100,001,000 ordinary 100% 100% - —  Investment holding
shares of HK$1 each
EBHMAREE 100,001,000 B REE REZR
BEIT s ERR
Soundwill Real Estate British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
(China) Limited US$1 each
SHGHE(FE)ER EEHARKES REREBEZSITL REER
27 el
Tang Lung Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - — 100% 100%  Property investment
Properties Limited HK$1,000
BRREHEARAT Bk BRRAEE1,0007T NERE
TCP Investment Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property
Limited HK$1,000 development
BiE B#RZA % #1,0007 NEER
Upper Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
FHERAT BiE BHRAERIT NERE
Wise Ease Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
HK$10,000
HEERARA EE BAIRAE 10,0007 NERE
World Firm Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$200 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
ERERRA EE BRERAE K200 NERE
HKAMLKERMEERE  Manland China Registered capital of - - 51% 51%  Property
BRAE" RMB25,000,000 development
FE R AfER NEER
AR #25,000,0007
EECHEHERE Mainland China Registered capital of - - 100% 100%  Property
BRAE" RMB30,000,000 development
FERH HMER NEER
AR #30,000,0007T
GETREARE Mainland China Registered capital of - - 100% 100%  Property
BRAE" RMB23,000,000 development
RE A AR MEER

AR 123,000,000t
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34. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

*

These subsidiaries were established in the Mainland China as
limited liability companies.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the
principal subsidiaries which materially affect the results or
assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

No financial information of the non-wholly owned subsidiaries

is disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as the
non-controlling interests are not material to the Group.

35. Non-Controlling Interests

34.

35.

TR BB 2 B 2 #E &= (4R)

A -

ZEMBRARNPBEAMKZAEREER

a| o

*
| %

EFRARATANEATFE2 TR
RBEBRITR  HERERARSYA
SEEFERAEAEAYEN 2 TENE
OETR

MEARNFRBMBEETERNEBES

H2EWBRAZHMBEMNREESER
BHREATHE FRARZEIFERESY
AEEMFEETERK

FiERER

2023 2022
—Eg=-= —E- =

HK$’000 HK$'000

EBETR BT T

As at 1 January n—HA—H 1,425 16,476

Profit for the year F A4 8 5,810
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of MEGINETS 2B

foreign operations Wz (E8) 190 (1,931)
Dividend paid to non-controlling EREERER KRS

interest — (18,930)

As at 31 December R+=—A=+—~1 1,623 1,425

The non-controlling interests of subsidiaries that are not 100%
owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial and
therefore no further details are disclosed.

35 et A< I A 1009 0 25 2 BB A 7 2 3F
RRERREATEA B EREE
— S -
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36. Related Party Transactions 36. FEtALRS
The following transactions with related parties were, in the EERR TIHRFRNEBBMALETZ
opinion of the Directors, carried out in the ordinary course of RGP BEEEBERET:

business during the year:

Short-lease expense and management (IR FABI A EMN Z A E

2023 2022
—®g-= —E-—

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETIT BT

fee expense in respect of office WMERBRAEERS R

premises situated in Guangzhou, EEBMZ(MiE@E)

the Mainland China (note (a)) 258 297

Short-lease expense for leasing MERARFE A EMNZ

carparking spaces situated in FHEAZEBAERS

Guangzhou, the Mainland China (Fft 5% (b))

(note (b)) 13 14
Notes: B 5
@) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with @) ARA—RMBARIE—RAEQR (AR

a related company, in which two executive directors of the
Company have interests, for leasing a number of premises situated
in Guangzhou, the Mainland China for office purpose.

(b) For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, a subsidiary of (b)
the Company entered into tenancy agreements with a related
company, in which a close family member of two executive
directors of the Company have interests, for leasing one (2022: one)

AMABARNTEE D) R HEHZ
HEZBEUNPREAMEMN W RERDE
M e

HE-Z-_=€F T —H+-fA=+—
BLEEE  ARE—XHBARE—REE
AR(ARAMBATES 2B R EAE
IV E R AEMR PR R EIN

carparking space situated in Guangzhou, the Mainland China. Z2—EA(CZEZ=F: —@)IFELL -
Key management personnel compensation: FEEBEABTM:
2023 2022
—E-= T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT T

Basic salaries and other benefits EXFHE REMEF 42,325 32,136
Pension costs — defined contribution RS A — EREMER

plans Bl 72 72

42,397 32,208
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37. Disposal of subsidiaries
Disposal of a subsidiary during year ended
31 December 2023
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has
disposed 1 subsidiary to independent third party at aggregate
consideration of HK$36,080,000. Direct expenses in relation to
the disposals was HK$650,000 and resulted in gain on
disposal of HK$11,440,000. The following detailed the key
disposals of a subsidiary during the year:

(@  On 16 March 2023, the Group entered into a sales and
purchases agreement to disposal of the entire equity
interest in Data Chief Limited and its subsidiary (“Data
Chief Group”). The disposal of Data Chief Group was
completed on 31 March 2023. The net assets of Data
Chief Group at the date of disposal were as follows:

37. HEKMBATE

A SO A B

RB8FE-—F-_=%+=-H=+—H1

FEHEREBEAS

BE2—_ZT-_=F+-A=

T—HLEFE &K

SERBYE=AHEIENBAR - &1
B /A75136,080,0007T * AL EZ EEM
¥ A8 1650,0007T + [Eif 2 A4 & W S
#£11,440,0007C c AT FHFFRALEZ X2

(Rl=PNCIE

@ RZE-_=F=A+/,H xE£EE:]
3 B & # % tH & Data Chief Limited &
HKtEB AT ([Data Chief £ B ) 2 2 &
f%# o Data Chief(c B v HEBE R =
E-_=ZF=ZA=+—H%MK - Data
ChiefEENEERH Z FEEMT :

HK$'000
BT
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties A 23,990
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRERWEARRE (12,435)
11,555
Loan assignment EReEE 12,435
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Data Chief 7 i & Data Chief &£ @ ~ & #
Group 53 650
Gain on disposal of Data Chief Group i & Data Chief £ B 2 iz z5 11,440
36,080
Total consideration wERE
— satisfied by cash — UReFH 36,080
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Data Chief & Data Chief s @R E 4+ 2
Group WERAFHE
Consideration received 2R E 36,080
Direct expenses HEAX (650)

35,430
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37. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) 37. HEMBAS (&)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended REBEE-_F-_—_F£+=-HA=+—HL
31 December 2022 FEHEMBAT
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has HE-Z-_—F4+-A=+—HLEFE &K
disposed 2 subsidiaries to independent third parties at SEmMBVE=FHEMWB AR - B
aggregate consideration of HK$95,300,000. Direct expenses B /A75%95,300,0007T * EHEZ BEERA
in relation to the disposals was HK$1,043,000 and resulted in ¥ /75 %1,043,0000T + AT EE L EEE
loss of disposal of HK$788,000. The following detailed the key 7 #5788,0007T © AT I FANHEZEE
disposals of subsidiaries during the year: R NETE
()  On 6 April 2022, the Group entered into a sales and ) RZZEZZFWANA  ANEBFIZ
purchases agreement to disposal of the entire equity BEEMRLEZILEEE 2K
interest in King Huge Group. The disposal of King Huge o FBITPEEERCBEERZZEZ
Group was completed on 6 April 2022. The net assets of ZHEMANATRK c BEYEEER
King Huge Group at the date of disposal were as follows: HERABRZFEENT
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties (note) wEWE M) 46,700
Other receivable H b & U kI8 45
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRZNB AR KIE (1,460)
45,285
Loan assignment Bz 1,460
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of King Huge ABBEEZBICEEE 2 i
Group i 366
Gain on disposal of King Huge Group HEFICEEB 2 Wa 189
47,300
Total consideration MR E
— satisfied by cash — UIR & XA 47,300
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of King Huge HEEICEEBEELE 2
Group BEmAFRE
Consideration received 2R E 47,300
Direct expenses BEERX (366)
46,934
Note: Investment properties which was classified as held for sale as Wek: RZEE_—F+=-_A=+—HBHEA
at 31 December 2021 have a historical cost of HK$23,495,000 REZREMEZELKNANRBE
and aggregated fair value gain HK$23,205,000 up to the date 23,495,0007C ' HELERBHZATF

of disposal. B = 48 58 & 75 #528,205,0007T °
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37. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2022 (Continued)

©

. HEMBAS(E)
NRB&E-F-_—F+= HE+—E¢
FEHEHRBAT (&

On 19 October 2022, the Group entered into an (© E’\\_Ei:ﬁJrﬂJrﬂEl C REEE]
agreement to disposal of the entire equity interest in a ViR — 2B E=AHEREN
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Granday Properties BRAREREXERAR(EBEX])
Limited (“Granday Properties”), to an independent third ZEHKE BREARBEBK
party at an aggregate consideration of HK$48,000,000. 48,000,0007T - EHE X 2 HEER
The disposal of Granday Properties was completed on 4 T F+—AMNAREK - EBE
November 2022. The net assets of Granday Properties ENHERRZFEENT :
at the date of disposal were as follows:
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property "EME 48,300
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRERWEARRE (8,125)
40,175
Loan assignment EXReEE 8,125

Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Granday

FRLEREREXZHEEMAX

Properties 677

Loss on disposal of Granday Properties HERBHEXZ2HE 977)
48,000

Total consideration
— satisfied by cash — UReZM 48,000
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Granday HEBHEXRELEZ

Properties WERAFHE

Consideration received 2R E 48,000

Direct expenses BEERY 677)

47,323
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38. Financial Instruments 38. MBITHR
38.1 Summary of Financial Assets and Liabilities 381 BREMEI D ZHMBZEERE B
by Category =
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and AEEBHBHEERABENHRERH

liabilities as recognised at the reporting dates are

categorised as follows:

BRZEMEDEMT

2023 2022
—g-= =
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at amortised BB P AR B BB
cost
— Trade receivables, net — B EIWGRIAFRE 32,392 46,565
— Other receivables and — Bt EWRIBE R £
deposits, net HEE 26,304 24,052
— Loan receivables — EIER 7,958 9,810
— Short-term bank deposits — RHRITER 635,200 272,400
— Cash and cash equivalents —RekReEEYD 503,106 1,122,544
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABR 2
BE - 38,884
Financial assets at FVTOCI EAFEFAEMEE
WAZBBEE 43,006 39,656
1,247,966 1,553,911
Financial liabilities MBaE
At amortised cost 171 55 P AR
— Trade payables — B ENHREAE (24,757) (18,466)
— Accrued expenses and — EHERRAMENIE
other payables (470,893) (477,156)
— Borrowings, secured — B8 BHF (1,516,799) (1,774,527)
(2,012,449) (2,270,149)

REE B - AR EREHKR AT R
ZHBEERBBZFREEEEAY
BEYEEAZR -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at reporting date.
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38. Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk) in the normal course of business.
However, the Directors meet periodically to analyse and
formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure to
the market risk.

Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies
on its risk management. As the Group’s exposure to the
market risk is kept to a minimum level, the Group has not
used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed
to are described below.

(@) Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the
fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group is
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on its
variable-rate interest bearing borrowings,
loan receivables, restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. The Group
is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
on fixed-rate short-term bank deposits. The
Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the Group
closely monitors its loan portfolio and
compares the interest rates under loan
agreements with existing banks against new
offers on borrowing rates from different
banks in the loan re-financing and
negotiation process.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
HIBOR arising from the Group’s variable
interest rate instruments.

38. MBI R(E)

AEBERNBEEBAZEERR R
BE T E R &SRR (OMNER K
A R g S A AR R R) o AT -
EEEHARE RN RHIE R RN
ERAKEMSHERAR -

—RmE  ARERERREESIA
RETREE - HRAKEMS SRR
HER&EKFE - MAKREY EXRA
ERTETAREMTAES P2
A REBI BB RBITOTERF
TAEERSZ - AKBMAX Z&
EAXUHAREINAT -

(a) 5B
0O FIEEER

MERBEMBTAZA
FEIRSRERAT ST
REHMHIRKE < B8R
B - AEERFEAR
e BRER - ZEH
RITFEFARRE RS
SEYMEARSRER
R o NREBITTILE S
78 BER 1T 5K 1
BN XER - NEERF
W N RGP EK - A
e AEETEREE
RAE  AEERERE
KBRS - HERAR
IR ER < BE
MR EAARRITIRE ZH
EEENRERLE -

AEBZHERENER
REREPREREEF
BREXTEELZEER
E S
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38. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a

Market risk (Continued)

()

Interest rate risk (Continued)

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally,
including the replacement of some interbank
offered rates (“IBORs”) with alternative nearly
risk-free rates. Details of the impacts on the
Group’s risk management strategy arising
from the interest rate benchmark reform and
the progress towards implementation of
alternative benchmark interest rates are set
out under “interest rate benchmark reform”
in this note.

The policies to manage interest rate risk
have been followed by the Group since prior
year are considered to be effective.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the reporting date and had
been applied to variable-rate financial
instruments at that date. 25 basis points
increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

The management considered that the
Group’s exposure to future cash flow risk on
variable-rate cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits and bank deposits
at escrow account as a result of the
changes of market interest rate is
insignificant and thus they are not included
in the sensitivity analysis.

38. MBI R(E)

(a) W5 RE (&)

()

F 3 2 e ()

EBMREE L RANNE
EERIETT - BRNREED
T b M| R B RTT
RZEFETRITRAER
Bl BRMEEENS
EIRNE SN2 TS
ErRERBRAEERNR
ZEMEE - FEERAE
BYRERO[ A R EAEDRE | o

AEEEEFEDKRBE
BR=mERBR  BA
BBRRBEA AR -

T3 10 5% JB T
BREE DT BRERFIER
REBHPELEEHME
E - WERARZAZEE
FREF T E o o5(8Z2h
ZIEREEEBH AR
BIEAREE B 2 FTE o K
BEZZT-_—_F+=-AH=
+—HIEFEEAARE
EEH DT ©

EEERS  AREARR
DRI T 455 1) 2= S &y 1 B /% 8
RekBRE2EEY R
HRITERMRTERP
ZBITERAH ZRER
ERBRITTEXN - Hitd
ABRESZEINA -



AN N

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4£#k

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #t

38. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a

Market risk (Continued)

()

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)
As at 31 December 2023, it is estimated that
a general increase of 25 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase the Group’s loss
after tax and decrease the retained profits
by approximately HK$3,150,000 (2022:
increase the Group’s loss after tax and
decrease the retained profits by
approximately HK$3,684,000). There is no
impact on other components of
consolidated equity in response to the
general increase in interest rates. A
decrease of 25 basis points in interest rate
would have had the equal but opposite
effect on the above financial instruments to
the amounts shown above, on the basis that
all other variables remain constant. The
sensitivity results are mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate loan receivables and
borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group mainly
operates and invests in Hong Kong and the
Mainland China. Despite the Group has
certain financial assets at FVTOCI
denominated in US Dollars (“US$”),no any
significant movements in the HK$/US$
exchange rate is expected as HK$ is
pegged to US$. No foreign currency risk has
been identified for other financial
instruments as they were denominated in the
same currency as the functional currencies
of the group entities to which these
transactions relate.

38. MBI R(E)

(a

EF-F—=

B T 5 R B

=F+-H=1—HIFE

i 45 ) g (4R
M 7 ZF/7 2 ()
T 3 G % JE 27 (AE)

(i)

R-E-—=F+=-H=+
—B - A E AR
RETEZBERT @ Bt
FI SR 2R B8 38 1 o5 E L 2
A8 AR E B RR T & B 1B
KO AR B i A 4 78
3,150,000t (= & = =
F A S ERR TR B
1B ROB IR B ) 4 7S
3,684,0007T) ° Fi| & ¥ g8
ibuﬁﬂé/—\%ﬁéZEWﬂ
FRER D W 2 o fﬁif“ﬁﬁ
Eﬁﬁﬂ‘ﬁ‘“%ﬂ%h?

F =G 251!%%5#%%&
M T EEK AR SR
BHERZEE - FRRED
MEZFARAEBEGRE
FEERER K %iéﬁﬁﬁ
¥ 2 A E R g

SN R
$7|\¢1§J—L % 46 R T R S B
BHRYBIAEZAFEL
ﬂimfﬁium%/ﬁ@zm
2o AEETENEFBR
PEAMEERIRE - &
EAEBEETRAYE
SEAH A 2 ERA 2 B 7%
BENER(E2DA
B BEHNEEEEZoH
8 - FANTEEBEL, e
EXArEFEMEKRE
o BRNEMMBEIAEZ
ERBURARRIZE
EER 2 EEER
I A 5 Bl O R B o
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38. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk
arising from changes in fair value of
structure bank deposits and fund
investments which carried at FVTPL and
FVTOCI respectively.

No sensitivity analysis an other price risk is
presented for the financial assets at FVTPL
and FVTOCI as the Directors consider a
reasonable possible change to the fair value
of the financial assets at FVTPL and FVTOCI
will not have a significant effect to the
Group’s profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the maximum
exposure to credit risk, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees issued by the Group arising from the
carrying amount of respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the amount of financial
guarantees disclosed in note 32.

38. MBI R(E)

(a

(b)

245 2 % (48)

(i)  E A EIEE
AEERA D BIZAFER
ABZRZAFEFAE
fth 2 A BR 2 A5 1
BITERRESKRE R
FEE B EHHEMER
[2 B e

HREFR AR A FER
Az MR R FEFAE
fE2EBAZHBEEZ
RPEZEBAREHT
Aﬁ$¢l%m&ﬁ@%
HRAELEBEAZE

%Iﬁﬁﬁ@iﬁﬁkﬁ
s MmN EFAREME
ERAZ BB EEZIE

ERRRZHERED
T o
15 & JE e R 73 (5 5F 15
KRB =FR T -_—F+=
ﬂ +—H B=aEERKRIK
CAEBEEFLIEERET
a&ﬁ“%%%%%Zrmﬁ
EEBHO - ANEBRFLRS B

BRI & P 5 & TR E #E R B 5
BEZIREEME L HEE
R UARHBEREE KM
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38. Financial Instruments (Continued)
38.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. The Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality at new
customer acceptance. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 on trade receivables individually.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Review of past due receivables is
conducted by the Group bi-weekly. Normally,
other than those property leasing rental
receivables which are secured by rental deposits,
the Group does not obtain collateral from other
customers.

38. MBI R(&E)
382 BRI EEBHERBR(E)

(b)

15 & /o Bi & s 18 5F 1 (4%)

B S BN
EEBRAEEERER L&
ERLFEERRBA - AK
BeaERmAErLENGEER
BEPZEEEER - AKEIAT
BHEHMERER - AREREKIR
RETBRDAHER - It
S - FEFE A B B 15 s 2 A
FOREK  AEEREEAGEE
BB B 5 U KR (E 5
#EITRERA °

MBEERERETEEREZ
BEPAETEMNEERE - &
EFF[EETREE R B HE
RZBEELLERBATZH
RN AEBEFPZBEE
B UREPREZARKHE
RE - AEESREBEZEHNAY
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38. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Loan receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Directors
have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, interest rate offered
to customers and collaterals received. Monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under 12-month ECL model on
balances individually.

The Directors estimate the estimated loss rates of
loan receivables (other than the Unsecured Loan)
based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors as well as the fair value
of the collateral pledged by the customers to the
loan receivables. Based on assessment by the
Directors, aside from those loan receivables
credit-impaired in prior year, the loss given default
is low in view of the fair value of the collaterals and
the Directors considers the 12-month ECL for
other loan receivables is insignificant as at 31
December 2023 and 2022.

38. MBI R(E)

(b)

15 & /o Bi & s 18 5F 1 (4%)

//?Ej/ f“ci/v

BREEERR  EFC
Bk—XBK AEEEEER
BME RETEFPZMERUR
IR 2 B - ZREER
B REREEIRETSIR
ElE AR o o - ARER
TF121IH%EHH{ZTJ§5?5$§*Q¥T
AE AR A BIETTRUE RS -
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38. Financial Instruments (Continued)
38.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other receivables and deposits

Management of the Group performs individual
credit evaluations on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits over a certain amount
and collective assessment on the recoverability of
remaining other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The management of
the Group believes that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of
other receivables and deposits.

Short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents

The credit risk on short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies
and no history of default in the past. No loss
allowance provision for short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents was recognised
upon application of HKFRS 9. The Group has
limited exposure to any single financial institution.

Other than structured bank deposits with a bank,
the Group does not have any significant
concentration of credit risk.

38. AT R(&E)
382 iR EEBHERBK(E)

(b)

15 & /ol K& &% et 18 5F 1 (44)

Bt WAL G £
AEBEREERRBESRFE
LE - BEKLBAUANSEAR
EXFZAGAIEER - B
H—E & %8 2 Bt B R IR K
Al AW E A2 AT ERIE
B YHHRTHEMEER
BERFIEZAMEREEETE
BIFME -AEEEEEMRE
AEEEAMEURFERGTEZ
REESRBYEEANEERE
R e

FEHRITIF ASRE 2 KRB %
FEY
AEEERRTERARRE
FEREEEBEYZEERRAR -
RRRHFITHAREEREER
AR ELETREEFRZR
TREmMEE BEILEED
ALER - ERE ARG HRS LR
FORR - BEBLIEHIIRITFK
ARBE "R FEBYERE
BRE ASEEEIMNE—F
BEEZHMOBR -

RN —ERITZEBIER
TERIN AEELEEALZ
EEERER
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38. Financial Instruments (Continued)
38.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

38 M?%IE("‘E
38.2 MAFE R E

BEHERBX(E)

(b) 155 /@ EER % EF 15 (&)

AEE 2 NEME B R A& BIF
e AT JE Bl AR K :

Other financial

rating Description Trade receivables assets/other items
HithMA IS EE Hith

PMEBEETFR B EWRIE I5H

Low risk The counterparty has a low Lifetime ECL — not 12-months ECL
risk default and does not credit-impaired
have any past-due amounts

1K L B2 HFERzENRRKBE ¥ CHRAHAEHREEEE 1REARBEEER
B F fo] 8 EA SR 0R — EEERE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after  Lifetime ECL — not 12-months ECL
due dates but usually settle credit-impaired
after due date

BERzE EBALESEIHAZRER - CRHEHREEEE 1REABBEEER
BETEIPEEEE — BEERE

Doubtful There have been significant Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
increase in credit risk since credit-impaired credit-impaired
initial recognition through
information developed
internally or external
resources

xR FRANIELESINBRIR ERHAEREEEE FRABNESHEEERR
BH - FERRBVLE — BEERE — EBEERE
RUAREAEE LM

Loss There is evidence indicating Lifetime ECL — credit-  Lifetime ECL — credit-
the asset is credit-impaired impaired impaired

&8 ERBRTEELBREER ERPEMEEERE TRARBEEER
B - BEERE —BEERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating Amount is written off Amount is written off
that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

6! ERBERAREBARBARE MIHEFE 88 5108

BNE BASEEYE
ERAME 2
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38. Financial Instruments (Continued) 38. I R(E)
38.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and 2R GEEEERBE(SE)
Policies (Continued)
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EEEMEREEFFEE)
(Continued)
The tables below details the credit risk exposures TRFNAEEBEZZEBRE
of the Group’s financial assets, which are subject BEEBITMcMBEEEZRFE
to ECL assessment: [ Bz ik
External Internal 12-month or
creditrating creditrating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
12@ A EABEH
IMBIEEFR ABEERR FEBEE MR 48 {E
2022
—F-_—
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it EBETT BEF T
Financial assets REBEREIRZ
at amortised costs MBEE
Trade receivables B 5 Wk R 20 N/A Note 3 Lifetime ECL 32,392 46,565
i A B 5£3 FRBAEMREEER
N/A Loss Credit-impaired 4,562 4,022
@A ! AREERE
Loan receivables JE W B R 20 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 7,958 9,810
A A 1 & R 12EAEHEEEE
Loss Credit-impaired 141,776 141,776
EiE BEERE
Short-term bank deposits %2 i §8 1717 3% 22 Aa3-Aal N/A 12-month ECL 73,400 30,000
T A 12EAAESREEEE
A3-A1 N/A 12-month ECL 136,700 242,400
38 A 12EABHEEREE
Baat N/A 12-month ECL 425,100 —
iE A 12EAEHEEEE
635,200 272,400
Cash and cash equivalents & M ESHEY 22 Aa3-Aal N/A 12-month ECL 125,921 371,916
T iE A 12EABHEEREE
A3-A1 N/A 12-month ECL 87,326 296,880
i A 12EAEHEEEE
B1-Baal N/A 12-month ECL 289,859 453,748
iE A 12EAEHEEEE
503,106 1,122,544
Other receivables and Hoh e R IE RET 2 N/A Note 1 12-month ECL 26,304 24,052
deposits T A B 1 12@AESMEERE
Other items HiIJEH
Financial guarantee MBERALD 32 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 40,220 51,166

contracts (Note 2) (Ft32) i A & @B 12@AESHEEREE
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38. I R(E)
32 HMEHEGEEEEHERBE(E)

38. Financial Instruments (Continued)
38.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EEEEEREEFFGE)
(Continued)
Notes: B 5
For the purposes of internal credit risk management, 1. RETADEERRERE - K
the Group uses past due information to assess SEEABHAENTEHEER
whether credit risk has increased significantly since RE T RERIARE BBEE
initial recognition. e
Pastdue Not past due Total
EH mEH st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T
Other receivables and deposits ~ E B UL 5K B K 7T &
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZE-_=F+-_A=+—H — 26,304 26,304
As at 31 December 2022 RZZEZ__#+-A=+—H — 24,052 24,052

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying 2. MM BEREHME - REA
amount represents the maximum amount the Group BEASEIREBEEBEEGOER
has guaranteed under the respective contracts. The ZEEeE BXWMEIATFE
fair values of the purchasers’ properties are higher EeRAEBRRITEL Z1E
than the Group’s guaranteed amount to the banks, ReE - ALEFR AV HER
and thus the Directors considered the loss given AHZENBBRRE M
default in the financial guarantee contracts is low and BEREHZ12EAEHREER
the 12-month ECL on financial guarantee contracts EERIETERX -

is insignificant.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the 3. HEIHEBFIBEMS  A5E

simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group assessed the
ECL on trade receivables individually on each
debtor.

1B T 4R 5 R AU H 0%
2 Bl E - RERMEN
EEER B BREH - A%
B 5 A B SR
2 R T R
#HE -



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4#kt

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SO A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023 8{ 2 = F = =+ = A =+ —HI F&E

38. Financial Instruments (Continued)
38.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The estimated loss rate of each debtor is
estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and
adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In the opinion of the Directors, the lifetime ECL on
trade receivables are considered insignificant.

The following table shows the movement in ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables
and loan receivables.

38. MBI R(E)
B2HMERAMEEBERBE(E)

(b) 15E/ERRHEFE (&)

BEBAZGFEEXTIRIE
BEHAREFFHRNZBED
BREQREH L X E
FANHTBEERARKB WA
RSMAEMEERELFE -

EERR BHRYFAEZE
RAMEREEEBRRE /LT
N

TRINTHE SR IAK &
WERERCBREEBEE
Eb o

ECL (credit-impaired)
BHEEHBE(FEEEE)

Trade receivables

EHEKRE

Loan receivables

& W & 3

2023 2022 2023 2022
—gC-= —E-CF [ =Ea —E--fF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BT T
As atthe beginning of the R ¥R & Ei 7))
reporting period 141,776 142,023 4,022 4,667
Changes due to financial R—A—B¥ERZ
instruments recognised BT AmE
asat 1 January:
— Impairment loss - BREZRESSE
reversed - (247) (58) (24)
— Write-offs — HisH - - (119) (764)
New financial assets EEMUBEE
originated - - 7 143
As at the end of the RIE IR
reporting period 141,776 141,776 4,562 4,022
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38. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are
over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.
The Group has taken legal action against the
debtors to recover the amount due and none of
the trade receivables that have been written off is
subject to enforcement activities.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade
payables, accrued expenses and other payables
and borrowings, and also in respect of its cash
flow management. The Group’s objective is to
ensure adequate funds to meet commitments
associated with its financial liabilities. Cash flows
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis. The
Group will raise funds from the realisation of its
assets if required. The Directors are satisfied that
the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

38. MBI R(E)

(b)

(c)

15 & /ol K& R o 1B 5F 1 (%)

MBEERBREBABARE
R B |EERAIKRE 5
E(PIMEBACETERKE
ABERF)  HEHE WA
ERNBBAMFE AREHLEE
RE) . ANEERIMEE S E W
R - AEEEH HEBAK
HUER1TE) - LABRIBIHARRIA -
2 38 < B 5 18 WK R i &
EHRBOREE -

B & = BE

MEE & B B 15 A K B X
BITEMGAEMRBIREEL
B\ o AEEBLERE S RN
RIA - R E A & E A A 5K
BREEARRERSREE
BEZnBEAR AKE
ZEBERERBERHNECRETT
HEPBHABEEH AL - R
EREREXEVESR -1F
FE - AKERERAEEEN
L8552 BEEEMNAKER
A] R 3R 5 BE 5 2 B 188 B B
MBEE -
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38. Financial Instruments (Continued) 38. I R(E)
38.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and 32 HHEAKREEEHERBUR(E)

Policies (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) HEELEFEE)
The following tables detail the remaining TRFAVNRNEBR 2B BEER
contractual maturities at the reporting date of the HwERAM 2 FIRELDEIEFEE -
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on DIRBEARTHERERE (B
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including FEHAGHFRS (A FEF
interest payments computed using contractual R)ERFEBIZEATFI R
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the 2R BNF)RAEBAREA
reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can YN HFREEE -

be required to pay.

31 December 2023
Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash flows
—¥-Z£+-H=t+-H
HYBAAH-RARRERE
Weighted
average Total More than
interest contractual Within 1 year but

rate Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
% amount cashflow  ondemand 5years 5 Years
i SHRIFH
T ReRE —ERE - 1/84
) REE 2% REXE BIEUA RENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERETR EETR EETR EETR EETT

Trade payables EV ) ENE NATER 24,757 24,757 24,757 - -
Accrued expenses and other i ERAREM

payables JEf5E NAZRER 347,254 347,254 347,254 - -
Rental deposits received Bhifske N/A 7 i B 123,639 123,639 67,386 54,539 1,214
Borrowings EE 4.56 1,516,799 1,629,009 654,547 974,462 -
Financial quarantee contracts BBERAY N/A 7 i - 40,220 40,220 = =
Lease liabilities MHEERE 3.93 37,924 40,755 18,050 18,523 4,182

2,050,373 2,205,634 1,152,714 1,047,524 5,396
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38. Financial Instruments (Continued)

EEFSAS—HILFE

38.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

38. MBI R(4E)
B2 HERAREEEERKE(H)

(c) HEEZEMEE)

31 December 2022
Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash flows

T EFA=T-H
HEERAIM-RARRERE
Weighted

average Total More than

interest contractual Within 1 year but
rate Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
% amount cash flow on demand 5 years 5 Years

mi ROANE

T 7= Reng —FRE —FNE
% REE ik RERE  ERENRA AFNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT AETT BETT BETT
Trade payables EV ) ENE NA T A 18,466 18,466 18,466 - -

Accrued expenses and other i ERREM

payables JEFE NATE A 340,168 340,168 340,168 - -
Rental deposits received BEhfske NAZTER 136,988 136,988 58,316 78,672 -
Borrowings EE 2.10 1,774,527 1,870,323 125,032 1,745,291 -
Financial quarantee contracts HEEREN NATE A - 51,166 51,166 - -
Lease liabilties HERE 393 50,615 54,593 22,547 25,778 6,268
2,320,764 2,471,704 615,695 1,849,741 6,268
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38. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in note 26, the Group’s HIBOR bank borrowings
may be subject to the interest rate benchmark reform.
The Group is closely monitoring the market and
managing the transition to new benchmark interest rates,
including announcements made by the relevant IBOR
regulators.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average
(“‘HONIA”) has been identified as an alternative to HIBOR,
there is no plan to discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate
approach has been adopted in Hong Kong, whereby
HIBOR and HONIA will co-exist.

Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
The following are the key risks for the Group arising from
the transition:

Interest rate related risks

For contracts which have not been transitioned to the
relevant alternative benchmark rates and without
detailed fallback clauses, if the bilateral negotiations with
the Group’s counterparties are not successfully
concluded before the cessation of HIBOR, there are
significant uncertainties with regard to the interest rate
that would apply. This gives rise to additional interest rate
risk that was not anticipated when the contracts were
entered into.

There are fundamental differences between IBORs and
the various alternative benchmark rates. IBORs are
forward looking term rates published for a period (e.g. 3
months) at the beginning of that period and include an
inter-bank credit spread, whereas alternative benchmark
rates are typically risk-free overnight rates published at
the end of the overnight period with no embedded credit
spread. These differences will result in additional
uncertainty regarding floating rate interest payments.

38. MBI R(E)

FIEBEXE

HANPH FE26FTFN - AEE 2B BRFE
RERTERHLAETNREER
B o AEEETVERTRNERN
HEMNERHEEK - BFEABRITRAE
REEERBHEL Z M0 -

EEREHE
EEETRRTFHEH(BITRRYF
BB ELRIEERBTERERE
MEA2ENEX - BREWRAFL
BHBBREFRERETE - FACDK
REBANRAFLER Bt AR
ERBEMBTRRFIEE SR
% o

FlF 2 EEE > AR
AEEREHAEEEY TTAR
mF

= 48 BA

BN ARBEEHBERAEENEXE
BAEHARRGRZEH @ HAREE
FRERFEFE R LK EAEE S
FHERETER - KERZH XA
FEEATHEEN - EEMAYL
BB RA TR R BN A R R R
H o

RITRFEFE RS REAEEN R
ERAEZR - RITAXEFRS SRR
58 26 B 2 40 9 5 B8 14 8 (91 20 318 A)
AIEEEBFE - BRRTESES
Z RAEENXR-—RANBERAHE
RRERMOERBRERNE - T8
EEEEEZ - EEEZRQBHUIRN
RHEBRBRIFEEE -
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38. Financial Instruments (Continued) 38. MBI R(E)
38.3 Fair value measurements of financial 383 M T AZAFEEE
instruments
(i)  Fair value of financial instruments that are () 2HTRZAFEREFEREE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis EiTiE
Some of the Group’s financial instruments are BAOXEE R TARZR
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting HEHRUAFEGTE - TR
period. The following table gives information about PmAEBEEZENBEIAZA
how the fair values of these financial instruments FE(LHEZAMEBHERIR
are determined (in particular, the valuation AR 2ER -
techniques and inputs used).
Fair value at Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
Financial assets 31 December hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs
SREE R+ZAZE+—HZAFE AFEEL FHEEHARIZHBABE EEFTHRGARRE
2023 2022
—E-= B
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Structured bank - 38,884  Level 2 Quoted asset value N/A
deposits provided by a financial
institution
EBMETER E2M CRBBREZMREE TEAR
EE
Investments in unlisted - 39,666  Level 2 Based on recent transaction ~ N/A
funds price
FLETEERE PR PUR AR 5 B R A @R
Investments in unlisted 43,006 —  Level3 Net asset value quoted from  Net asset value of the
funds fund managers underlying investments
FETESRE £3R HEeERBAMEETE HERENEEFE

HiE
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38. MBI R(&E)
383 &M IAZAFEEE)

38. Financial Instruments (Continued)
38.3 Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)
(ii)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

(i) F3RLFEFTEZHE

measurements
Financial assets
at FVTOCI
BATEETA
HhZHEUEAZ
MBEE
HK$’000
BETR
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE__F—H—H -
Transfer into Level 3 (note) #AEIR 39,656
Additions BN 311
Total gain in other comprehensive income HEfb2mEUA B 3,036
Exchange realignment ME 5 8 B 3
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+-HA=+—H 43,006

Note: The Group owns 1.0445% and 0.66% equity interest Wak: AEEEB2ESBEAEAR
in 2 unlisted funds that are classified as financial FEFGAEMEEKA Z B
assets at FVTOCI and are measured at fair value at KEEERSHREAHUR
each reporting date. The fair value of the FTEFEZHFETES

investments as at 31 December 2023 amounts to
HK$43,006,000 (2022: HK$39,656,000). The fair
value of the investments as at 31 December 2022
was measured using the recent transaction price of
the equity interest in the unlisted funds and hence
was classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
As at 31 December 2023, the equity interest of the
unlisted funds was measured using a valuation
technique with significant unobservable inputs and
hence were classified as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

1.0445% $0.66% &) A% 4 -
R-ZE—=F+-_fA=+—
H- 8 E 22 FMEA
43,006,000 (=T = —
£ : 39,656,000 JT) ° A=
T_—F+=-A=+—8"
BREZATFEFEAFELETE
e REZFBR S ERGT
2 AR BEARTFESR
HE2K - R BE-_=F+—
A=+—H 3EEmESH
RIEFBEEEENAHER
B A BB fhE RTE =
AHBERANTFEERNE
3% -
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38. Financial Instruments (Continued)
38.3 Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

(iiij)  Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value
on a recurring basis
The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to
their respective fair values.

39. Reconciliation of Liabilities Relating to

Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
relating to financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes which represents net debt as presented in Note
40. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

38

39.

. BBIRGE)
38.3 @M I 82 AFHEiE ()

(iii)

BHIERBEELIELIZ FEE
HEHEEREHMEMRZLF
-

EZRA REEMBERERIA
BHERATEZEREERS
MAEBEKREEREEEM

4+

E o

HREESRAZER/HER

TERFIAGSHERELTHER CAFEE
B SRR LIRS - BIHF402
SIZFET - BERDELEZABNBE
FARRAKESERESRERANDER
MERHERZAGREZRERE -
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39. Reconciliation of Liabilities Relating to

A SO A B

S+ A=+ —AIER

30. HMAESAMZ BRI

Financing Activities (Continued) (&)
Amount
due to
Dividend minority Lease
payable interest liabilities ~ Borrowings Total
Eft D
FEf iR S ERRE HEAR EE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
As at 1 January 2022 W-Z-—-%—F—H - - 29,428 1,871,501 1,900,929
Cash flow, net BehEEE (56,662) (18,930) (23552) (137,895) (237,039)
Other non-cash changes: HiER e 2E):
New leases entered nERE - - 42581 — 42 581
Finance costs recognised EERBREKAR - — 2158 40,921 43,079
Dividends declared BEERKRE 56,662 18,930 - - 75,592
As at 31 December 2022 RZZEZZ#+ZRA=+-H - - 50,615 1,774,527 1,825,142
Cash flow, net REMEFH (56,662) - (26,099) (340,601) (423,362)
Other non-cash changes: HinER e g
New leases entered MERE - - 11,702 - 11,702
Finance costs recognised EERBEKAR - - 1,706 82,873 84,579
Dividends declared EERKRE 56,662 - - - 56,662
As at 31 December 2023 RZZZ=F+ZA=1+—H - - 37,924 1,516,799 1,554,723
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40. Capital Risk Management 40. EXE s ER

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the current year.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as the sum of the Group’s borrowings and lease liabilities less
cash and cash equivalents and other bank deposits as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital
is calculated as total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain the
debt to equity ratio at a manageable level.

AEEEAEE T R2ARAERLAEH
FEREZeN  NEBRERRIEHE
BRREMFOERENES

AR B R PN R B BT 2 AN
WHEIEL B o BRFBLHRE AL
AEE T AR RS2SR
BB AR RITHR « A % 48
BiE - BRI FEHES -

AEBNBAEHEE L XEERNFEE
BBRABERN)ERER - FEHURAH
BRAKRALAEEEERHERE ZAM
WRE MREFEEY R EMIRITFRAH
BRI A MBI RPN Z 2t B8R
AE-AKEEEARARY RS L RN
AERZKE -

2023 2022
—T-= —_E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
EET T BET T
Borrowings BE 1,516,799 1,774,527
Lease liabilities HEARE 37,924 50,615
— Financial assets at FVTOCI —EBAFEFAEMEE
WA Z B EE (43,006) (39,656)
— Financial assets at FVTPL — B AFEFAEBZ 2T
BE - (38,884)
— Short-term bank deposits — RERITER (635,200) (272,400)
— Cash and cash equivalents —RekReEEYD (503,106) (1,122,544)
Net debt FEE 373,411 351,658
Total equity MR YER 18,459,862 19,175,634
Net debt to equity ratio FEEHERIE 0.020:1 0.018:1
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